
 

1 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Monday, December 08, 2025 

6:00 p.m. 

 

MINUTES 

 

The City of Clemson Planning Commission met in open session in the Council Chambers in City 

Hall, 1250 Tiger Boulevard, Clemson, SC. 

 
Members present: Herb Tyler (Chair), Greg Rice (Vice-Chair), Tanya Hyatt, Bryan Yoder, 

John Crolley 

 

Members absent: Benji Cumbie 

 

Staff present: Nathan Woods, Assistant City Administrator and Planning & Development 

Director; Art Holbrooks, City Planner; Jacob Peabody, Zoning & Codes Administrator, Kelly 

Roach, Recording Secretary. 

 

The meeting was livestreamed and recorded on YouTube. 

 

1. Call to Order:  

 

Mr. Tyler called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m., and then introduced the Commission 

members and staff present.  

 

2. Public Session (3:22) Mr. Tyler opened the public session and called for comments related 

to items not on the agenda; no one choose to speak. He also noted that there had been no written 

comments received for items not on the agenda, then closed the public session. 

 

3. Adoption of Minutes (5:36) 

  

a. November 10, 2025 – Regular Meeting 

Mr. Tyler called for proposed edits to the draft minutes; there were none. Mr. Tyler called for a 

motion. Mr. Rice made a motion to approve the Monday, November 10, 2025 minutes as 

presented; Ms. Hyatt seconded the motion. Mr. Tyler called for discussion; there was none. Mr. 

Tyler called for a voice vote; there was no opposition; The motion was unanimously approved by 

a 5 - 0 vote.  

 

4. Major Subdivision Sketch Plan Review (6:21)  

 

a.  MSUB-000518-2025 Proposed Major Subdivision (Rock Creek Road) 

Mr. Tyler called for any updates or reports from staff. Mr. Holbrooks provided a brief overview 

of the Commission’s role in the subdivision development review process, noting that the sketch 

plan review was the first of three reviews. Mr. Tyler then recognized Mr. Peabody to provide 

more detailed background information on the specific item. 



 

2 

 

Mr. Peabody explained that the proposed project was a continuation of the Rock Creek Village 

conservation subdivision project begun in 2003, explaining that only half of the approved homes 

had been developed before it stalled. The property owner later combined the remaining lots 

before deciding to return to the original concept in 2023, when the project was again given 

approval as a special exception by the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA). 

 

Mr. Tyler then called the developer to come forward to present. 

 

Mr. David Jones, applicant and agent for the property owner, stated that he had taken the role of 

the project’s developer when it went before the BZA in 2023, and said that the property owner’s 

intent was to complete the project. He also noted that the current plan would be smaller than 

originally planned, and said that the detention pond was nearing completion. (See Attachment 

#1)  

 

Discussion followed. Among the topics addressed were: 

 

• The proposed walking trails and accessibility by the public 

• Status of the HOA 

• Alley ways and cul-da-sacs 

• A portion of Lot #1 to be given to the adjoining property owner 

• The anticipated price and average square footage of the new homes 

• The topography of the development  

• Installation of privacy fencing to screen new development from adjoining neighborhood  

• Set-backs 

 

Following the conclusion of discussion, Mr. Tyler called for comments by audience members. 

 

Mr. Hap Wheeler, 201 Augusta Road, Clemson. stated that it was previously agreed that all trees 

with a caliper of 6-inchs or greater would remain, and that all the wooded area behind the lots 

would remain as a buffer. He also requested that all invasive plants be removed.  

 

Mr. Scott Brame, 207 Augusta Road, Clemson, asked about the conservation subdivision rules, 

and expressed concerns over the possibility of the lots being clear-cut. He also said he worried 

about the existing retention pond not being large enough for the future build out, and questioned 

the proposed wetland survey. 

 

Mr. William Brown, 311 Rock Creek Road, Clemson, noted the location’s history of flooding; 

Mr. Woods stated that if approved the project would be required to account for stormwater 

issues.  

 

Mr. Hap Wheeler, 201 Augusta Road, Clemson, stated concerns about standing water in the 

stormwater pond. 

  

Mr. Scott Brame, 207 Augusta Road, Clemson also expressed his concerns with the drainage of 

the retention pond.  

 



 

3 

 

Mr. Tyler called for any further public comments; there were none. He then stated that storm 

water management was a major concern in the review of projects. 

 

5. Action Items (45:56) – None 

 

6. Advisory Items (45:57) – None 

 

7. Discussion Items (46:03)  

 

a. Neighborhood Conversation Overlay 

 

Mr. Woods briefed the Commission on a proposed amendment of the zoning standards that 

would create a new overlay he titled the Neighborhood Conversation Overlay. If approved and 

implemented, it would set standards in the residential neighborhoods near College Avenue 

intended to help maintain the character and limit changes from future development. As proposed, 

a major feature of the proposal would be to impose architectural standards on new construction 

in the neighborhoods. Mr. Woods stated he wanted the Commission’s input on whether the 

proposed changes went too far. (See attachment #2) 

 

Discussion followed. Among the topics addressed were: 

 

• Legal aspects of the proposed overlay 

• Design standards 

• Differences between an overlay and a HOA 

• Added expenses on property owners associated with the proposed overlay 

• How the overlay would fit with the anticipated rewrite of the zoning code 

 

Mr. Woods concluded with a request that comments and suggestions be emailed to staff. 

 

8. Staff Reports (1:48:22)  

 

Mr. Holbrooks informed the Commission that the public hearing on the draft comprehensive plan 

originally scheduled for December 1, 2025 had been rescheduled due to the impacts of bad 

weather on the consultant’s travel. It had been readvertised for January 12, 2026 at 5:30 pm.   

 

9. Other Items (1:49:38) 

 

a. Planning Commission Representation at Council Meeting - None 

b. Future Workshops and Other Events - None 

    

10. Adjourn (1:49:48) 

 

Mr. Tyler called for a motion to adjourn. Mr. Rice made a motion to adjourn; Ms. Hyatt 

seconded the motion. Mr. Tyler called for a vote by a show of hands; there was no opposition. 

The motion was unanimously approved by a 5 – 0 vote.   

 



 

4 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:49 p.m.   

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 

Kelly Roach, Recording Secretary 

 

These minutes are in draft format and subject to change until approval by the City of Clemson 

Planning Commission.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

5 

 

Attachment #1 
MJS-000518-2025 Rock Creek Road Sketch Plan 

 

 



 

6 

 

 
 

 



 

7 

 

Attachment #2 
Nathan Woods’ Presentation Notes and Slides 

 

 



 

8 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

9 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

10 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

11 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


